
NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE 
BOARD OF REGENTS  

MAY 30, 2025 

Page 1 of 109



NOTICE	

The Board of Regents of Northern New Mexico College will hold a regular meeting 
on Friday, May 30, 2025 at 9:00AM, Via Zoom and in person at Northern New Mexico 
College, Board Room, Española Campus, Española, New Mexico. 

Join Zoom Meeting 
https://nnmc.zoom.us/j/93884181987 

FINAL		AGENDA	

I. CALL TO ORDER
II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
III. PUBLIC INPUT
IV. COMMENTS FROM THE BOARD

A. Board of Regents Subcommittee Reports
1. Housing Committee – Informational
2. Audit, Finance, Facilities Committee – Informational
3. Academic and Student Affairs Committee – Informational
4. Governance Committee

a. Upcoming Presidential Evaluation - Informational
b. Upcoming Board Evaluation - Informational

5. HERC Committee - Informational
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - Action Required
VI. PRESIDENT’S REPORT AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

A. Celebrate Northern – Informational
B. CUP/NMICC Report – Informational
C. NNMC Foundation – Informational
D. Introduction of Staff and Faculty – Informational
E. Update on Public Input Received - Informational

VII. FACULTY SENATE PRESIDENT REPORT
VIII. STUDENT SENATE PRESIDENT REPORT
IX. STAFF REPORTS

A. Vice President for Finance & Administration
1. Fiscal Watch Reports - Action Required
2. Plaza Deck Resurface and Infrastructure - Action Required
3. El Rito South Dorm HVAC - Action Required

Page 2 of 109

https://nnmc.zoom.us/j/93884181987


4. Equipment Disposal - Action Required
5. 2028 Soaring to New Heights Strategic Plan - Action Required

X. EXECUTIVE SESSION
(1) Limited personnel matters related to the hiring, promotion, demotion,

dismissal, assignment, resignation, or investigation or consideration of
complaints or charges against an employee;

a. No items
(2) Bargaining strategy preliminary to collective bargaining

a. No items
(3) Threatened or pending litigation subject to the attorney-client privilege in

which the College may be a participant; and
a. No items

(4) Real estate acquisition or disposal.
a. No items

XI. VOTE TO REOPEN MEETING - Certification that only those matters described in
the Executive Session Agenda were discussed in the closed session; if necessary,
final action with regard to certain matters will be taken in Open Session

XII. ADJOURNMENT

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), physically challenged 
individuals who require special accommodations should contact the President’s Office 
at 505-747-2140 at least one week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible. 

Page 3 of 109



	 	
	

	

	
	
	
	

MEMORANDUM	
	
	
To:	 	 Board	of	Regents,	
	 	 	 Northern	New	Mexico	College	
	
From:	 	 Hector	Balderas,	JD,	CFE	
	 	 	 President	
	
Date:	 	 May	30,	2025	
	
Re:	 	 	 Board	of	Regents	Meeting	Minutes	
		 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	
Issue	
	
Northern	New	Mexico	College	(NNMC)	provides,	on	a	monthly	basis,	Board	of	Regents	
Minutes	from	the	previous	month	for	approval.	
	
Recommendation	
	
Staff	recommends	that	the	Board	of	Regents	approve	the	attached	Board	of	Regents	
Minutes	 for	 February	 27,	 2025	 and	May	 9,	 2025	 as	 submitted	 or	 if	 applicable,	 as	
amended.			
	

Page 4 of 109



Page 5 of 109



Page 6 of 109



Page 7 of 109



Page 8 of 109



Page 9 of 109



Page 10 of 109



Page 11 of 109



Page 12 of 109



Page 13 of 109



Page 14 of 109



Page 15 of 109



Page 16 of 109



Page 17 of 109



Page 18 of 109



Page 19 of 109



Page 20 of 109



Page 21 of 109



Page 22 of 109



Page 23 of 109



Page 24 of 109



Page 25 of 109



Page 26 of 109



Page 27 of 109



Page 28 of 109



Page 29 of 109



Page 30 of 109



Page 31 of 109



Page 32 of 109



Page 33 of 109



Page 34 of 109



Page 35 of 109



Page 36 of 109



Page 37 of 109



Page 38 of 109



Page 39 of 109



Page 40 of 109



Page 41 of 109



Page 42 of 109



Page 43 of 109



	 	
	

	

 
BOARD OF REGENTS SPECIAL MEETING 

MINUTES 
MAY 9, 2025 

 
A Special Meeting of the Board of Regents of Northern New Mexico College was held on 
Friday, May 9, 2025, In Person and Via Zoom in the Board Room of Northern New Mexico 
College, Española. Campus.  Regents Present in person and Viz Zoom: Michael A. Martin, 
Erica Velarde, Ruben Archuleta, Ron Lovato and Dolores Gurule.   
 
Northern New Mexico College Staff Present: President Hector Balderas, JD, CFE, Theresa 
Storey, Chief Financial Officer/Compliance Officer, Matthew Baca, General Counsel, 
Scott Stokes, Chief Information Officer, Juan Gallegos, Windows System/Information 
Security Administrator, Vince Lithgow, Accountant III, Christian Gomez, Technical 
Trades Academic Advisor, Arin McKenna, Staff Writer/Reporter, Sondra Adams, 
Director, Financial Aid, Martin Shupla, Director of Library, Frank Loera, Director, Career 
Technical Education, Emma Hashman, Director, Admissions, Joseph Padilla, 
Instructor/Chair, Technical Trades, Evette Abeyta, Budget Director, Farjahan Shawon, 
Director of Teaching and Learning Center, Mandy Montoya, Women’s Head Basketball 
Coach, Patrice Trujillo, Health & Safety Manager and Amy Peña, Executive Office 
Director/Board Secretary.  
 
Faculty Present: Margaret Zak, Melanie Colgan, Ellen Trabka, Sandra Rodriguez, Scott 
Braley 
 
Others Present: Nicholas Atencio, John Ussery, Tim Crone, Jake Arnold, Barbara 
Campbell, Bruce Smith, Leo Valdez, Jasie Green, Student Senate President, Dolores 
Gurule, Roberta Orona Cordova. 
 
Board President Balderas introduced Coach Mandy Montoya, Women’s Head Basketball 
Coach to the Board of Regents and meeting attendees.  She is a local, a superstar, one of 
our grow our own leaders.  Coach Montoya stated this is a full circle moment.  She left 
Peñasco being head coach, principal, whatever they needed her to do to come here and is 
excited to be back at Northern and to get the community involved as much as possible.  
Coach Montoya stated having her and Mike Dominguez will help to push the community 
involvement.  They are pretty well known in the sports world and the community.  She is 
excited to be back and will be in offices and around campus.  President Balderas thanked 
Coach Montoya for joining Northern New Mexico College. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chair Martin Called the meeting to order at 2:08PM 
 

Page 44 of 109



2	

	

II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Chair Martin entertained a motion to approve the agenda. 
 
Regent Lovato moved to approve the agenda.  Second – Regent Gurule.  A roll call 
vote was taken.  Chair Martin – yes, Regent Velarde – yes, Regent Archuleta – yes, 
Regent Lovato – yes, Regent Gurule – yes.  Motion passed unanimously.   
 
III. STAFF REPORTS 

 
A. Provost & Vice President  

 
1. Child Development Certificate  

 

Matt Baca, General Counsel stated there are two certificate items from the Education 
Department that up for consideration today. They are in the packet under a single memo.  
The NNMC Teacher Education Program is seeking approval of two certificates one in 
child development and one in early childhood professional.  The purpose of this program 
is to fulfill, to develop in an effort to address the importance of certifying students in a 
bilingual capacity and assisting childhood educators and therapeutic intervention to 
address folks who are either facing housing issues, or if their children are students who 
graduate with this certificate. You know students who graduate with this are our normal 
Northern students. They count to towards our funding formula and so you know as the 
memo and the information in the packet indicates, the Education Department is hoping for 
approval on both.  Dr. Rodriguez is here to answer questions for the Board of Regents.  
The recommendation is to approve both certificates.  Mr. Baca stated Dr. Rodriguez is 
here to answer any substantive questions but the recommendation from the Faculty Senate, 
the Provost and the President is to approve both of these certificates. 

Chair Martin asked Dr. Rodriguez to join the Board and add her expertise.  

Dr. Rodriguez stated on both programs they are both subsets of the programs that we 
already have here at Northern that are accredited by State and by our national accrediting 
agency.  They are both part of the AA for Early Childhood.  The first 12 credits for the 
CDC the courses are sequential the first one 12 credits and the second one 29 credits.  If 
students take them, they also apply them towards their AA and BA.  It is a step program.  
The need for this program is at family centers and public schools.  People now have to have 
these certificates.  What we have had is requests from either the public schools or the 
county centers to have these certificates.   All courses are approved, there is nothing 
different.  We are offering an English and Spanish strand.  We are also building a Spanish 
strand.  We are going to do a dual language so students are getting more and more English 
as they move up in the program.  The goal for this is they are then able to take the general 
ed courses so they can then get their AA or BA.  To her knowledge her is no other 
institution doing this.   

Page 45 of 109



3	

	

 
Chair Martin asked if there were any questions. 
 
No questions from the Board of Regents. 
 
Chair Martin asked if we should approve these separately or together.  Mr. Baca stated his 
recommendation would be to take them one at a time.   
 
Chair Martin entertained a motion to approve the child development certificate. 
 
Regent Velarde moved to approve the Child Development Certificate.  Second – 
Regent Lovato.  A roll call vote was taken.  Chair Martin – yes, Regent Velarde – yes, 
Regent Archuleta – yes, Regent Lovato – yes, Regent Gurule – yes.  Motion passed 
unanimously.   
 

2. Early Childhood Professional Certificate  
 
Chair Martin entertained a motion to approve the Early Childhood Professional certificate. 
 
Regent Velarde moved to approve the Early Childhood Professional Certificate.  
Second Regent Gurule.  A roll call vote was taken.  Chair Martin – yes, Regent 
Velarde – yes, Regent Archuleta – yes, Regent Lovato – yes, Regent Gurule – yes.  
Motion passed unanimously.   
 
Chair Martin thanked Dr. Rodriguez and he thanked her for her patience and he knows we 
haven’t had a meeting for two months.  He really appreciates it.  
 

3. Nursing & Health Sciences Fees  
 
Mr. Baca stated the nursing department is asking the Board to allow the Nursing 
Department to increase the nursing fees by $257.50.  The department is going away from 
traditional hard textbooks and using ATI.  The fees would allow full access to these 
learning.   
 
Ms. Colgan stated she doesn’t have a lot to add.  We are hoping to adopt ACI to its fullest 
capacity.  We adopted them for a couple of our classes and testing.  As articulated in the 
justification memo, the department is going away from using AI, which is an online 
comprehensive learning program and so the request is that the fees would allow for full 
access to those learning resources to be offset by the students not having to purchase a 
traditional textbook. There's more detail in the justification, but that that's essentially the 
basis. And, as Mr. Baca understands, we should have some folks from the nursing 
department there to answer any, follow up questions that you all may have, 
 
 

Page 46 of 109



4	

	

Chair Martin asked Chair Trabka to join the Board.  Chair Trabka stated Melanie Colgan 
would be joining the Board.   
 
Ms. Colgan stated she does not have to add a lot to add to what Mr. Baca said.  We're 
hoping to adopt AI to its fullest capacity. We started in 2022 adopted AI for a couple of 
our classes, but also for our testing and we've had great success with that. That's when we 
started.  Not that that's all because of ATI, but we do believe ATI is just a very high-quality 
product. It's very interactive, which the students seem to do well with. Instead of reading a 
traditional textbook, they now have different modules that they do, and within the modules 
they read a few paragraphs. They take a quiz. They read a few paragraphs. They watch a 
video. There's always something to engage the student as they're studying and we found 
that that really helps them to retain the information.  It comes complete with all sorts of 
test times for not only students, but for faculty to build their exams, and it has all of our 
standardized testing that we use to ensure that our students are prepared for the NCLEX 
come the end of graduation so we’re asking that we’d be allowed to raise our fees by that 
$257.50 a semester to implement the entire package, and not just the piecemeal that we’ve 
had for the past couple of weeks.  Ms. Colgan stood for questions from the Board of 
Regents. 
 
Chair Martin asked if there are any questions.  Regent Archuleta – no questions. 
 
Mr. Baca stated he would like to add one thing, the major ask was for the program and the 
books and there is also an ask for the phlebotomy that would cover a background check 
and medical malpractice insurance.  This is also in the ask.   
 
Regent Lovato asked what ATI is. Ms. Colgan stated it is a learning platform.  It is all 
online and digital and has a lot of resources in it and has information for students and has 
things for students who are visual learners.  It also has the option of listening for students.  
It is just an interactive program that delivers our curriculum.  It is updated on a regular 
basis and has current information.   
 
Regent Lovato asked what a typical textbook cost.  Ms. Colgan stated currently our 
students spend roughly $700.00 for textbooks for an entire semester.  This would get rid of 
that cost all together.  Mr. Lovato stated he would like to make a comment and he supports 
this.  As we make this easier and easier, and when students enter the workforce, there is a 
lack of work ethic.  This is just something to keep in mind for the future.   Ms. Colgan 
stated this came after a lot of debate among the faculty.  They have learned over the years 
that they have to meet the students where they are.  Everything is in just small bites for the 
students but it is not after a lot of discussion after these exact comments. 
 
Regent Gurule – no questions.  
 
Chair Martin stated on the handout for the new fees effective fall 2025.  The different 
classes have $971 is that for each class or all classes.  Ms. Colgan stated that is a semester 
of nursing courses.  The semester would be $3,884 for the entire program which is a four-

Page 47 of 109



5	

	

semester program. Ms. Trabka stated it also covers one week of NCLEX preparation and 
they are able to practice through the summer.  It is per semester.  (inaudible).  Ms. Colgan 
stated per semester, this is a three-year contract that would have to be signed. 
 
Chair Martin asked what the students do regarding textbooks when they don’t have them 
and how do they refer back.  Ms. Colgan stated this program is available to them as they 
are in our program.  Let’s say they have an OB program this semester but tested a year 
later, they can go back and use all this information to study.  Chair Martin thanked Ms. 
Colgan for answering all the questions.  
 
Chair Martin entertained a motion to approve increasing Nursing and Health Science Fees. 
 
Regent Gurule moved to approve increasing Nursing and Health Sciences Fees.  
Second – Regent Velarde. A roll call vote was taken.  Chair Martin – yes, Regent 
Velarde – yes, Regent Archuleta – yes, Regent Lovato – yes, Regent Gurule – yes.  
Motion passed unanimously.   
 
Chair Martin commended Nursing and Health Sciences for the 100% pass rate. Second 
year in a row – 24 students.  (inaudible).  Chair Martin congratulated the Nursing and 
Health Sciences Department. 

 
4. Posthumous and "In Memoriam" Recognition Degrees  

 
Mr. Baca stated the last item is a request the Board of Regents approve updates to the 
Course Catalog to align our institutional practices for awarding a posthumous degree or 
granting a student an in-memoriam degree when they pass away when they are in the course 
of study.  The request under the posthumous degree is they've completed 75% of the credits 
toward a degree and are in good academic standing, meaning, they have a cumulative GPA 
of 2.0 or above that, a member of their family, or a friend or a classmate can petition the 
registrar and ask that a posthumous degree be awarded to the student. The registrar will 
verify that the student meets those criteria I mentioned and if that's the case, then the school 
will award a posthumous degree, and they'll be recognized as a graduate at the next 
commencement thereafter. The second item is that in the event that the student isn't quite 
that essentially isn't quite that far along in their course of study that they be eligible for an 
In Memoriam recognition and so they must essentially be registered for and attended 
classes within the previous 12 months. You know, the college has been in the practice of 
doing these types of things in the past, and I believe we'll have a similar thing coming up 
in our next commencement hearing. So, the request is really to update the catalog to bring 
the college in line with our institutional practices. 
 
Chair Martin asked if there were questions from the Board.  No questions from the Board. 
 
Chair Martin entertained a motion to approve the Posthumous and "In Memoriam" 
Recognition Degrees.  
 

Page 48 of 109



6	

	

Regent Lovato moved to approve the Posthumous and “In Memoriam” Recognition 
Degrees.  Second – Regent Gurule.  A roll call vote was taken.  Chair Martin – yes, 
Regent Velarde – yes, Regent Archuleta – yes, Regent Lovato – yes, Regent Gurule – 
yes.  Motion passed unanimously.   
 

B. Vice President for Finance & Administration 
 
1. FY26 Proposed Operating Budget 

 
Theresa Storey, CFO presented the FY26 Operating Budget (attached) for the Board of 
Regents.  Ms. Storey would like to give special recognition to Ms. Abeyta and Ms. Lovato 
who are online to answer questions and without them we would be lost.   
 
Chair Martin asked how we are spending SB275, Section 39.  Ms. Storey stated those are 
primarily last year’s capital outlay appropriations.  Renovation of portables, match for 
renovation of BCES labs, renovations in El Rito.  Chair Martin asked if they are all last 
year.  Ms. Storey stated yes.  HB450 represents current year.   
 
Chair Martin asked where the Amphitheater Area would be.  President Balderas explained 
there will be an outdoor classroom outside the front of the Montoya Administration 
Building.  The way he got the money for this, there is a family lost their sone in a shooting 
and the Governor was interested in some anti-programming and as we were designing and 
developing that programming, we came up with the concept that we would create an 
outdoor classroom safe space and the architects really like that kind of bare hill. So, we're 
hoping to go out to bid, and that'll be part of a redesign all the way from the outward 
building here all the way to the gate and the Governor gave us a million dollars to do that 
outdoor classroom. I'm hoping it'll be beautiful lighting, and it'll be very a lot. I think I 
think even faculty, they're going to want to teach classes out there. So, we don't have 
anything in Rio Arriba that is actually like anywhere you could put 200 or 300 people 
outdoors.   
 
Chair Martin asked what we are doing at the Sportsplex.  Ms. Storey stated there are roofing 
needs, bleacher needs and ADA compliance.     
 
Ms. Storey stated what is awaiting approval is on page 214 and 215 (attached) Ms. Storey 
reviewed the BR&R (attached) for the Board of Regents. 
 
Ms. Storey stated there is also the 4% increase for eligible employees.  The budget has 
about 9.95% increase for benefits.   It does institutionalize is the CHESS budget.  Up until 
now we experienced a project budget.  The FY26 will include the recurring operating 
budget for CHESS.  We did institutionalize five positions.   
 
Chair Martin asked if there were questions from the Board.  Regent Velarde – no, Regent 
Archuleta – no, Regent Lovato – no, Regent Gurule – no.   
 

Page 49 of 109



7	

	

Chair Martin stated we are always under a lot of pressure not to increase tuition because of 
the opportunity scholarship.  He believes the funding for it was increased by 2 1/2$% this 
year and recurring was increased by 2.3%.  Is that going to cover our unfunded mandates?  
Or, how are we looking at covering stuff like, because we had to pay the half of the increase 
in the medical insurance right?  We had to pay our half and how much would that be?   Ms. 
Storey stated just to back up a little bit the 4% increase compensation increase, we do get 
funded about 80% for the benefit increase we received, we received about 4% in dollars 
about $43,000.  There is an unfunded portion of that.  It is dependent upon what our 
employees elect for benefits and what type of vacancies we have throughout the years.  In 
order to answer the question, in order to balance the budget, there is always some reliance 
on some fund balance the budget this year has just under $1M reliance on fund balance and 
that is essentially where we kind of balance that funding.   
 
Chair Martin asked if this is sustainable over the next four years. Because if we don’t, 
tuition increase is about the only way we can increase our revenues and we haven’t 
increased tuition since December of 2021 so and Chair Martin knows Santa Fe Community 
College increased their tuition this year.  But are we going to be penalized if we have to 
raise tuition to meet our budgets.  Ms. Store stated there is a plan to look at tuition and 
modeling and options for the future. As to whether the demand out of fund balance is 
sustainable. The budget is a guide. There are a lot of projections, and there are a lot of 
assumptions. And so, what we typically experience is that we don't need that amount from 
the fund balance, right? That we it's not typical for us to spend 100% of our budget. So, to 
add to answer, if it's sustainable, it's not generally what we actually realize. But there is a 
plan to look at tuition for the future, so do we have to use fund balances.  Chair Martin 
asked if we always have to use fund balance.  Ms. Storey stated last year to sir, every year 
since she has been here, and Ms. Abeyta is online Ms. Storey think that's the standard 
practice and not just that.  Chair Martin asked Ms. Abeyta if we have done that for the last 
how many years.  Ms. Abeyta stated we have done that, so we have projected every year 
to balance the budget by fund balance use.  It has never gone over a $1.6M but actual year 
to date fund balance use, it has not been a large amount.  She does not recall the figures but 
usually we have left some money on the table.  That has actually been the stall in tuition 
increase because the net effect has not been over usage of budget.  We have managed the 
budget controls very well.  Chair Martin would like to discuss this at the retreat.  Ms. Storey 
stated we have also seen our budget grow not decline so that is not an indicator.   
 
Chair Martin asked about adjunct salary increase.  Ms. Storey stated those are discussed 
through CBA negotiations.  Chair Martin asked if we could have a raise for them at some 
point.  President Balderas stated we are in union negotiations.  We are going to find money 
to treat all faculty, staff and adjuncts on the same level.  It will, we won’t allow them to be 
grumpy, they will be happy.  Chair Martin stated for Regent Lovato’s clarification, we had 
not given the adjuncts a raise until President Balderas came along.  President Balderas 
stated the Board gave them 10% last year and he did warn them not to expect 10% but we 
will do our best.  Chair Martin stated about half of our instruction is through adjuncts.   
 

Page 50 of 109



8	

	

Chair Martin asked if the 4% applies to those working out of a grant.  Ms. Storey stated it 
does not.  Chair Martin asked if it is common for those who write the grant to write in a 
crease.  Ms. Storey stated for some of the grants they plan for an increase and for some 
they do not and some do budget adjustments or make it up with carry over.  Unfortunately, 
some are not able to give the 4%.  As noted in the Branch Budget, the Mill Levy supports 
the 4%.    
 
Chair Martin asked what percent of our workforce is funded by grants or just a general 
percentage, it doesn’t have to be exact.  Ms. Abeyta stated she does not have it but she will 
try to find it.   
 
President Balderas stated what might be helpful is the federal grants to state funds 
proportion.  Ms. Storey stated as a proportion of our total budget, 25% of our budget is 
grants and contracts.  That wouldn’t solely represent personnel but roughly.  Ms. Evette 
stated on Exhibit 1 are the total by restricted and unrestricted. In unrestricted it is a total of 
220.066 FTE and the grant FTE is 31.01 FTE.   
 
Chair Martin asked if there were some employees under a grant that do not get a raise.  Ms. 
Storey yes.  Chair Martin asked if we could adjust their salaries.  Ms. Storey stated that 
would be at the discretion of the respective grant.  We don’t match that.  Chair Martin 
asked if it could be written into the grant.  President Balderas stated we do advocate for 
that when applying for the grants. 
 
Chair Martin entertained a motion to approve the FY26 Proposed Operating Budget.  
 
Regent Gurule moved to approve the FY26 Proposed Operating Budget.  Second – 
Regent Lovato.  A roll call vote was taken.  Chair Martin – yes, Regent Velarde – yes, 
Regent Archuleta – yes, Regent Lovato – yes, Regent Gurule – yes.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 

 
2. FY25 Final Budget Adjustment Requests  

 
Ms. Storey reviewed the FY25 Budget Adjustment Request (attached).  These are in draft 
format and we did submit to HED pending board approval.  This is not untypical in a 60-
day session.  The final BARs give us full budget authority to utilize the full budget.  The 
forms in the packet mirror Exhibit 1 of the proposed budget.  It has the current approved 
budget and the revised budget.  The revised budget represents our estimated actuals.  We 
ask for the ceiling so all state funding and grants we take the approach that if we can use 
it, we want to.  These adjustments for unrestricted and restricted align.   
 
Chair Martin asked if there were questions from the Board.  Regent Velarde – no questions, 
Archuleta – no questions, Regent Lovato asked if the college runs on a 6/30 period.  Ms. 
Storey stated this is correct.  Regent Gurule – no questions. 
 

Page 51 of 109



9	

	

Chair Martin entertained a motion to approve the FY25 Final Budget Adjustment 
Requests.  A roll call vote was taken.  Chair Martin – yes, Regent Velarde – yes, 
Regent Archuleta – yes, Regent Lovato – yes, Regent Gurule – yes.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
IV. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Chair Martin entertained a motion to adjourn. 
 
Regent Lovato moved to adjourn.  Second – Regent Gurule.  A roll call vote was taken.  
Chair Martin – yes, Regent Velarde – yes, Regent Archuleta – yes, Regent Lovato – 
yes, Regent Gurule – yes.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
The Board of Regents adjourned at 2:54PM. 
 
Approved: 
 
 
____________________________     
Michael A. Martin       
Chair 
 
____________________________     
Erica Velarde        
Vice Chair 
 
 

Page 52 of 109



MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Regents
Northern New Mexico College

FROM: Theresa Storey, Chief Financial Officer

THRU: Hector Balderas, President

DATE: May 30, 2025

RE: Fiscal Watch Report

Issue:
On a quarterly basis, Northern New Mexico College (NNMC) provides an institutional 
report for the Board of Regents (BOR) for review and approval.

Overview:
Quarterly, the NNMC Chief Financial Officer and the Business Office staff prepare a Fiscal 
Watch Report for review and discussion at the Audit, Finance, and Facilities Committee 
(AF&F) meeting. The financial report provides an overview of the institution’s financial 
condition for all unrestricted and restricted funds and grants throughout the College. 

The Fiscal Watch Reports are presented in the format prescribed by the New Mexico Higher 
Education Department (NMHED).  Additional information is included to provide a budget 
status update for the Institution.  In addition, the BOR also is provided information for the 
following financial areas summarized in the monthly institution-wide Fiscal Watch Report:

Unrestricted Funds
Auxiliary Programs
Institutional Grants
Student Aid
Plant Funds
Capital Outlay Projects

Recommendation:
Staff recommends that the BOR approves the Fiscal Watch Report for the period ending 
March 31, 2025.

Page 53 of 109



Page 54 of 109



Page 55 of 109



Page 56 of 109



Page 57 of 109



Page 58 of 109



MEMORANDUM

TO: Northern New Mexico College 
Board of Regents 

FROM: Theresa Storey, Chief Financial Officer/Compliance

THRU: Hector Balderas, President
 

DATE: May 30, 2025 
 

RE: Plaza Deck Resurface and Infrastructure – Action Item 
 

Background: 
Northern New Mexico College (NNMC) is requesting $521,707.56 for the complete 
renovation and resurfacing of the 120 square foot Plaza walking deck. This critical upgrade is 
designed to significantly enhance student safety and contribute to a high-quality learning 
environment. The scope of work includes comprehensive drainage improvements, the 
application of an advanced, multi-layer silicone deck coating for superior traction, and 
aesthetic improvements such as repainting and replacing bench tops with durable Trex 
decking. We anticipate minimal disruption to the campus community. 
 
This project is scheduled to be presented before the Capital Outlay Committee on June 11, 
2025, pending NNMC board approval. 

 
Required Action: 
The New Mexico Higher Education Department Capital Project Transmittal Summary Sheet 
is attached for the BOR review and approval. 

Thank you for your consideration.

Page 59 of 109



NEW MEXICO HIGHER EDUCATION DEPARTMENT

 1 

2044 Galisteo Street, Suite 4, Santa Fe, NM 87505-2100 

CAPITAL PROJECT TRANSMITTAL SUMMARY SHEET 

Complete this summary sheet and include with project submittal. The deadline to submit project 
documents can be found on the NMHED Annual Calendar of Events at http://www.hed.state.nm.us/
institutions/resources.aspx. In order to ensure your project will be considered, it must be uploaded by 
the deadline to the  address:      

Institution: Date: 

1. Project title:

2. HED meeting date when project consideration is requested:

3. Contact person: Phone:  

Email:

4. Required forms for project categories (5.3.10 and 2.70.4 NMAC):
a) Construction, Alterations, or Demolition (All Forms)
b) Revenue Bond Forms (1, 1-A, 4, 5, 6)
c) Property Acquisition – Purchase, Lease, or Donation (Forms 1, 1-A, 3, 4, 5, 6)
d) Property Disposition – Sale or Trade (Forms 1 and 6)

5. A site plan or plat, as-builts or completed preliminary floor plan drawings,
including elevations, with each space identified as to function. (Required for all
project categories)

6. Supporting Documentation for Funding Sources (Required for project category 
a, b, and c)

7. Certificate of Adequate Parking. (Only required for new construction and
property acquisition)

8. Evidence of Energy Measures (Required for project category a and c)

9.

10.

11.

Form 1 – Project Information

Form 1   Institutional and General Information

Form 2 – Space Information

12. Form 3 – Estimated Utilities Costs 

13. Form 4 – Proposed Project Costs

14. Form 5 – Proposed Project Square Footage and Funding Sources

15. Form 6 – Certification by Governing Board

Page 60 of 109



NEW MEXICO HIGHER EDUCATION DEPARTMENT

 2 

FORM 1: PROJECT INFORMATION 

Original: Date: 

Revision: Date: 

Spell out and define all acronyms 

Institution: 

Project title: 

Location of Facility:   

Age of Facility:  

Date of Last Improvement:  

Types of Space within Facility:   

Gross Square Footage of Facility:   

Gross Square Footage Offset:

General Nature of Use and User Groups within Facility: 

and Impact to User Groups: 

Page 61 of 109



NEW MEXICO HIGHER EDUCATION DEPARTMENT

 3 

FORM 1: PROJECT INFORMATION (con’t) 

Institution: Original: Date: 

Project title: Date: Revision: 

Description of why this project is needed and how it satisfies program 
needs/enrollment/mission:  

Describe the consequences of this project not receiving approval: 

Was this project included in the annual Capital Outlay Plan submitted to HED
f not, provide reason why:  

If this request was included in a previous recommendation for Legislative funding, 
provide information on differences from initial recommendation to current project 
request:  

Page 62 of 109



NEW MEXICO HIGHER EDUCATION DEPARTMENT

/2018 4 

FORM 1-A: INSTITUTIONAL AND GENERAL INFORMATION 

Institution: Original: Date: 

Project title: Revision: Date: 

Current Total On-Campus Enrollment – Fall Semester
Head Count: FTE: 

% Growth from previous year  % Average growth in previous 5-year 
period

Current Total Off-Campus Enrollment (web-based or Distance Ed., etc.) – Fall Semester
Head Count: FTE: 

% Growth from previous year  % Average growth in previous 5-year 
period

Tuition – Fall Semester
Current Tuition Per Credit Hour: $ Current Tuition Per Semester: $ 
Month/year per semester tuition was 
last increased:      /    

Amount of last per 
semester tuition increase: 
$    

  % Change 
from last increase 

Program Enrollment Being Served by this Project – Fall Semester
Head Count: FTE: 

% Growth from previous year  % Average growth in previous 10-year 
period

Bonding Information 
(to be completed if local bond proceeds are used for project funding) 

Assessed Valuation: Month/year of most recent local bond issue: 
/ 

Outstanding Debt: 
Available Capacity: 

Project Schedule
Month/year proposed construction 
start date:   /   

Month/year proposed construction completion 
date:   /   

Comments: 

Page 63 of 109



NEW MEXICO HIGHER EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 

5/20185

FORM 2: SPACE INFORMATION 

Institution: Original:  Date: 

Project title: Revision:  Date: 

List the et ssignable quare eet (NASF) and Net Usable Square F (NUSF) of spaces to be 
constructed, altered, or demolished by this project.  Definitions of classifications used below may be
found in “Postsecondary Education Facilities Inventory and Classification Manual” published by 
the U.S. Department of Education.

CLASSIFICATION 
CODE

TYPE OF SPACE DEMO NEW ALTERATION 
% OF NUSF 

(NEW & ALT)    

100 Classroom 

200 Laboratory 

300 Office 

400 Study 

500 Special 

600 General 

700 Support 

800 Health 

900 Residential 

TOTAL NET ASSIGNABLE AREA (NASF)

WWW Circulation Area

XXX Building Services Area 

YYY Mechanical Area 

TOTAL NONASSIGNABLE AREA                                                                                            NIC SQ FT

TOTAL NET USABLE AREA (NUSF)

TARE                                                                                              TOTALS

TOTAL PROJECT GROSS SQUARE FEET

FINAL PROJECT GROSS SQUARE FEET

ORIGINAL BUILDING GROSS SQUARE FEET

FINAL BUILDING GROSS SQUARE FEET

FINAL BUILDING GROSS SQUARE FEET DIFFERENCE

Page 64 of 109



 6 

NEW MEXICO HIGHER EDUCATION DEPARTMENT 
FORM 3: ESTIMATED UTILIT  

Institution: Original: Date: 

Project title: Revision: Date: 

This form is designed to estimate the project’s effect on current utilities costs, and to 
note submittal of supporting documentation related to Energy Saving Measures 
incorporated into the project. 

FORMULA 
CURRENT 
EXPENSES 

PROJECTED ANNUAL 
EXPENSES AFTER 

COMPLETION 

DIFFERENCE BETWEEN 
CURRENT AND 

PROJECTED (+ OR -) 

Eligible GSF:   x $3.75 

Check applicable boxes below: 

Space is non I&G  Target Finder attached LEED Checklist attached 
(Comment Required) 

Project Green Screen Features and Comments

Page 65 of 109



NEW MEXICO HIGHER EDUCATION DEPARTMENT

/2018 7 

FORM 4: PROPOSED PROJECT COSTS

Institution: Original: Date: 

Project title: Revision: Date: 
I.  PROJECT BUDGET 

EXPENDITURES 
ITEMS INCLUDED IN 

TOTAL COST 
FOR EACH EXPENDITURE

ORIGINAL SUBMISSION
BUDGET REVISION NEW 

CONSTRUCTION ALTERATIONS
A.  Building Cost 

1. General

2. Mechanical/Plumbing

3. Electrical

4. Special Systems (voice,
data, other) 

5. Demolition

BUILDING COST SUBTOTAL

B.  Built-in Equipment 

C.  Site Development

1. Utilities, Infrastructure

2. Landscaping/Site
Improvements 

3. Demolition

TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST 
(T.C.C.) 

Page 66 of 109



Page 67 of 109



NEW MEXICO HIGHER EDUCATION DEPARTMENT

/201  9 

FORM 5: PROPOSED PROJECT SQUARE FOOTAGE  
AND FUNDING SOURCES 

Institution: Original: Date: 

Project title: Revision: Date: 

COSTS PER GROSS SQUARE FOOT (GSF)

Cost 
(Items A-C on Form 4)

GSF
for New Construction 

NUSF for Alteration 
Cost per GSF

New Construction
Alterations

RATIO OF NET USABLE TO GROSS SQUARE FEET (NUSF/GSF) 
NUSF

(same as total from 
Form 2)

GSF RATIO NUSF/GSF (%) 

New Construction
Alterations

FUNDING SOURCE
Enter the source of funding for the project.  

Total must match the total project budget on Form 4. 

Funding Source and Description Original 
Submission 

Budget
Revision 

Total  
List State Appropriations as follows: Bond Series #: GOBxx or STBxx or GF 20xx, DFA#: A0x-xxxx), 
SBxxx or HBxxx, Laws of 20xx, chapter x, and section x. This information is available on the CPMS 
website at http://cpms.dfa.state.nm.us/. For all other funding, list revenue source and year 
budgeted. 

Page 68 of 109



NEW MEXICO HIGHER EDUCATION DEPARTMENT

/2018 10

FORM 6: CERTIFICATION BY GOVERNING BOARD

Institution: Original: Date: 

Project title: Revision: Date: 

ORIGINAL CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify, on the basis of the information contained in Forms 1 through 5 of this capital 
project submittal and all attached supporting documentation, if appropriate, that the 
Governing Board approved the original submission of this project at its meeting on
_____________

Certified: 

__________________________________________________________
Printed Name of President Signature

REVISED SUBMISSION CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that the Governing Board approved this Revised Submission at its meeting on
_____________

Certified: 

____________________________________________________________
Printed Name of President Signature 

Page 69 of 109



MEMORANDUM

TO: Northern New Mexico College 
Board of Regents 

FROM: Theresa Storey, Chief Financial Officer/Compliance

THRU: Hector Balderas, President
 

DATE: May 30, 2025 
 

RE: El Rito South Dorm HVAC – Action Item
 

Background: 
Northern New Mexico College (NNMC) is requesting $303,438.00 for the installation of 
new, energy-efficient heat pump technology to upgrade the heating and cooling systems in 
the south wing of the building. This project is funded by a grant specifically aimed at 
mitigating homelessness and reducing housing instability.  It involves a variety of indoor 
units tailored to specific room types, new roof-mount condensers utilizing the latest 
Refrigerant 454b, and a substantial upgrade to the building's electrical infrastructure to 
support the new systems. Importantly, the building is currently unoccupied, ensuring no 
disruption to any user groups during this critical upgrade. 

 
This project is scheduled to be presented before the Capital Outlay Committee on June 11, 
2025, pending NNMC board approval. 

 
Required Action: 
The New Mexico Higher Education Department Capital Project Transmittal Summary Sheet 
is attached for the BOR review and approval.

Thank you for your consideration.

Page 70 of 109



Page 71 of 109



Page 72 of 109



Page 73 of 109



Page 74 of 109



Page 75 of 109



Page 76 of 109



Page 77 of 109



Page 78 of 109



Page 79 of 109



Page 80 of 109



MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Regents
Northern New Mexico College

FROM: Theresa Storey, Chief Financial Officer / Compliance Officer

THRU: Hector Balderas, President

DATE: May 30, 2025

RE: Certification of Disposition of Tangible Property

Issue:
The State Audit Act 12-6-12 NMSA 1978 and appertaining regulations (i.e. 2.2.2 NMAC) 
and also under 13-6-1 and 13-6-2 NMSA 1978 governs the disposition of items of tangible 
personal property.  NNMC staff has identified such items for disposition (see attached 
listing).

NNMC staff has identified that the items are obsolete, worn and non-functioning.  The 
majority of the items are not contained on the asset listings, except for some pieces of
laboratory and computer equipment.  Under the aforementioned state statues and 
administrative regulations there are several disposal methods to utilize based on the 
condition and value of the items.  The purported disposal methods will be 1) offered to the 
State Agency for Surplus Property of the General Services Department as they have the first 
right of refusal under state statue, 2) the destruction of the items, which will be discarded at 
a local landfill under federal, state and county laws, regulations and /or ordinances, 3) 
donation to a private non-profit, and/or 4) solicitation of sealed bids at auction.

Recommendation:
Staff recommends approval of the items and methods of disposition.

Page 81 of 109



Page 82 of 109



Page 83 of 109



Page 84 of 109



Page 85 of 109



Page 86 of 109



Page 87 of 109



Date: Department: Org/Fund

F = Taken by former employee for grant-related work

G = Theft (Provide Police Report if available)

H = Unlocated after exhaustive search

A = Destroyed

B = Discarded

C = Disposed of by off-site employee

D = Returned to agency
I = Returned to vendor/Trade-in

J = Cannibalized

K = Other (Must explain)

*Deletion
Code

Asset #
Description Pallet # In WASP

Net Book
Value Custodian Capital Grant #

PRINT NAME & TITLE of authorized signature:

Signature:

Approved: Dissaproved:

Grant # Disapproved

Notes:

Notification Sent to Agency

REQUEST FOR DELETION OF ASSETS
NNMC POLIC #7710

Codes for Reasons for Deletion

Contingent on Approval

Business Office Use Only

Notification Rec From Agency

Page 88 of 109



Page 89 of 109



Page 90 of 109



Page 91 of 109



Juan E Gallegos <juan.gallegos@nnmc.edu> Fri, Jul 26, 
2024, 

to me

Hi

-

10549

10241

10290

10269

-

- D

– -

Page 92 of 109



 Memorandum 

 To:  Board of Regents, Northern New Mexico College 

 From:  Strategic Planning Steering Committee through  President Balderas 

 Date:  May 30, 2025 

 Re:  Approval of Soaring to New Heights Strategic  Plan 2028 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

 Issue  :  Northern  has  engaged  in  a  multi-phase  strategic  planning  process  that  began  with  Phase  I 
 in  2023,  which  resulted  in  the  adoption  of  a  new  Mission,  Vision,  Core  Values,  and  Strategic 
 Pillars,  and  which  were  approved  by  the  Board  in  the  Fall  2023  semester.  With  the  assistance  of 
 consultancy  Dini  Spheris,  Northern  worked  with  a  wide  range  of  stakeholders,  including  over 
 200  survey  comments,  as  well  as  with  key  participants  from  the  Board  of  Regents,  Faculty,  Staff, 
 Students,  community  leaders  and  area  stakeholders  to  develop  these  items  along  with 
 establishing a framework for strategic goals for the plan. 

 Following  this  process,  Northern  engaged  with  internal  stakeholders  to  align  the  work  of  the 
 Student  Success  Academy—the  quality  initiative  that  is  a  part  of  Northern’s  open  pathway 
 accreditation  with  the  Higher  Learning  Commission—with  the  newly  approved  Mission/Vision, 
 and  to  ensure  that  the  work  of  the  quality  initiative  aligned  with  the  preliminarily  identified 
 strategic priorities from Phase I of the strategic planning process. 

 Following  Phases  I  and  II  of  the  process,  the  Strategic  Plan  Steering  Committee  synthesized  the 
 work  of  Phases  I  and  II  and  convened  members  of  the  strategic  planning  working  group  to 
 finalize  the  proposed  Goals  and  corresponding  Objectives  that  are  before  the  Board  and 
 recommended to establish Northern’s three year Strategic Plan. 

 Recommendation  :  Based  on  the  wide-ranging  input  gathered  and  the  identification  and 
 refinement  of  Northern’s  strategic  priorities  for  the  next  three  years  that  resulted  from  this 
 thorough  planning  process,  the  Strategic  Planning  Steering  Committee,  with  President  Balderas’ 
 approval,  recommend  that  the  Board  of  Regents  approve  the  Soaring  to  New  Heights  Strategic 
 Plan 2028. 

Page 93 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 1

 
NORTHERN New Mexico College
STRATEGIC PLAN 2028 / Soaring to New Heights

Page 94 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 2

MISSION STATEMENT

Northern New Mexico College is an inclusive,  
student-centered teaching and learning community, 
dedicated to excellence, empowering students, and 
transforming lives.

Page 95 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 3

As a Hispanic- and Indigenous-serving institution, 
sustained by place, culture, and innovation —  
Northern is a beacon of higher education for all students, 
igniting minds to create vibrant futures. 

VISION STATEMENT

Page 96 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 4

n  STUDENT-CENTERED: We honor every student as a unique individual and prioritize student needs  
in all decision making.

n  MUTUAL RESPECT: We respect the differences of all peoples; diversity, equity, inclusion, and  
belonging are our strengths.

n INTEGRITY: We value honesty, trust, and transparency.

n EXCELLENCE: We commit to continuous improvement and strive to excel in all that we do.

n  SERVANT LEADERSHIP: We prioritize the growth, well-being, and empowerment of students, 
faculty, and staff, and are good stewards of resources entrusted to our care.

CORE VALUES

Page 97 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 5

n  TRANSFORMATIONAL STUDENT EXPERIENCE: We journey together with our students 
through a positive, proactive, personalized experience and become partners in their dreams. 

n  ACADEMIC EXCELLENCE: We teach with spirit and heart to provide a culturally responsive, 21st-
century learning environment that sparks critical thinking and maximizes intellectual achievement.

n  ORGANIZATIONAL EXCELLENCE: We act with shared purpose and responsibility – focused on 
innovation and continuous improvement – committed to student success and empathetic, engaged 
leadership and expertise.

n  STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIPS: We build partnerships that enhance student and institutional 
success and community well-being.

STRATEGIC PILLARS

Page 98 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 6

STRATEGIC GOALS

1.  Design and deliver exceptional services and support to ensure student success.  

2.   Foster a teaching and learning environment that promotes a culture of belonging  
and responds to the needs of all students.  

3.   Provide structured pathways that prepare students for advanced educational 
opportunities, meaningful careers, and service to community. 

4.   Invest in people, integrated enterprise-level operations, systems, and technology. 

5.  Strengthen Northern’s visibility, brand, value, and impact.  

Page 99 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 7

Design and deliver exceptional 
services and support to ensure 
student success.  

STRATEGIC GOAL #1

Page 100 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 8

•   Identify and act upon specific barriers to and opportunities for 
student access and success. 

•    Create a targeted communication system for students that 
fosters success throughout their journey from application 
through graduation.

GOAL # 1 / OBJECTIVES

Page 101 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 9

Foster a teaching and learning 
environment that promotes 
a culture of belonging and 
responds to the needs of all 
students.  

STRATEGIC GOAL #2

Page 102 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 10

•   Develop and implement processes that foster an inclusive and 
supportive educational environment, promoting student growth 
academically, socially, and emotionally.

•   Ensure the same quality of education for all students regardless  
of modality. 

•  Improve and sustain co-curricular assessment development.

GOAL #2 / OBJECTIVES 

Page 103 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 11

STRATEGIC GOAL #3

Provide structured pathways 
that prepare students for 
advanced educational 
opportunities, meaningful 
careers, and service to 
community. 

Page 104 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 12

•  Develop more articulation agreements with community  
and other four-year colleges.

•  Expand local and state workforce development partnerships.

•   Increase internship and community service learning opportunities.

GOAL #3 / OBJECTIVES 

Page 105 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 13

STRATEGIC GOAL #4

Invest in our people, and 
integrated enterprise-level 
operations, systems and 
technology.

Page 106 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 14

GOAL #4 / OBJECTIVES

• Foster a positive, supportive campus culture, encouraging open 
communication, teamwork, recognition, professional growth, and 
work-life balance. 

• Build upon and strengthen a culture of shared governance and 
shared responsibility.

• Modernize, integrate, and optimize data and technology systems.

• Maintain exceptional financial and resource stewardship.

Page 107 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 15

STRATEGIC GOAL #5

Strengthen Northern’s 
visibility, brand, value,  
and impact.  

Page 108 of 109



NORTHERN NEW MEXICO COLLEGE n STRATEGIC PLAN 2028, Soaring to New Heights 16

GOAL #5 / OBJECTIVES

• Strategically increase sustainable enrollment. 

• Develop a comprehensive communication and marketing strategy 
through shared knowledge and responsibility. 

• Advance understanding, engagement, and collaboration among our 
communities and stakeholders.

Page 109 of 109


	May 30 - Cover
	5-30-2025 Board of Regents Final Agenda
	Minutes Memo
	1093_001
	5-9-25 Minutes
	Packet
	MEMO - SOARING TO NEW HEIGHTS
	Strategic Plan 2028 5-28-25



